
 AGENDA 

ANIMAL SERVICES/PROPERTY SERVICES 

APPEAL MEETING 
June 9, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. 

Council Chambers, Town Hall 

Online Agenda:  Anything in blue denotes an attachment/link. By clicking the links on the agenda 
page, you can jump directly to that section of the agenda. To maneuver back to 
the agenda page use the Ctrl + Home keys simultaneously OR use the 
“Bookmark” icon on the navigation panel to the left of your screen.

Alternative formats available upon request by contacting: 
sarah.moore@ajax.ca or 905-619-2529 ext. 3347 

1. Call to Order

2. Approval of Minutes

2.1     April 14, 2016 Minutes………………………………………………………………….Page 2

3. Public Meeting Appeals

3.1 Animal Services Appeal Committee  

3.1.1     Bannerman Appeal – 49 Iles Street……………………………………….Page 13 

3.2 Property Standards Appeal Committee 

3.2.1     McNee Appeal – 16 Garnett Drive…………………………………………Page 31 

3.2.2     Speed Appeal – 25 Meekings Drive……………………………………….Page 65 

4. Verbal Update

4.1 Animal Services Committee 

4.1.1 Curran Appeal – 2914 Beachview Street 

4.2 Property Standards Committee 

4.2.1 Rashid Appeal – 61 Wilce Drive 

5. Adjournment

mailto:sarah.moore@ajax.ca


MINUTES OF THE 

ANIMAL SERVICES/PROPERTY STANDARDS APPEAL COMMITTEE 

MEETING HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, AJAX TOWN HALL 

At 7:00 p.m. on Thursday, April 14, 2016 
 

 

Present:       Members                                                             - K. Barrett 

- D. Jean 

- O. Lambert 

                                                                                                                            

  Staff      - K. Little, Secretary  

        - D. Hannan, Staff Resource  

        - S. Christensen, MLEO 

        - S. Neal, MLEO 

 

  Absent      - A. Bridgeman 

         

 

   

 

1. Call to Order 

 

Chair Barrett called the meeting to order at 7:04 p.m. and asked that everyone turn 

their cell phones off.  She explained the role of the Committee, the sequence of 

evidence being given and that the appellants could appeal the decision of the 

Committee to either the General Government Committee or the Superior Court of 

Ontario if they did not agree with the outcome. 

 

2. Adoption of Minutes 

 

Moved by: Member Jean  

 

That the Minutes of the Animal Services/Property Standards Appeal Committee held 

on February 11, 2016, be adopted. 

 

         Carried. 

 

3. Public Meeting Appeals 

 

3.1 Animal Services Appeal Committee 

 

3.1.1 Lang Appeal – 92 Church St. S., Unit 406 

 

Member Lambert made a Motion to remove the Lang appeal from tonight’s 

Committee agenda. 

 

2



 3.1.2 Curran Appeal – 2914 Beachview Street 

Chair Barrett asked Officer Christensen to come up.  She also confirmed that Mrs. Curran was in 

attendance.   

Officer Christensen described the events that lead up to him issuing an Order to Restrain on 

“Ace”, a German Shepherd that resides at 2924 Beachview Street.  He explained that on March 

6, 2016, the next door neighbor of the Currans pulled into her driveway, opened her trunk to get 

out some groceries, and a large German Shepherd lunged and growled at her.  Officer 

Christensen believes the Order to Restrain will ensure that this dog is not off leash anymore.  He 

did not include a muzzle restriction due to there being no physical contact between the dog and 

the victim.  The main component of the Order to Restrain is that the dog will have to be 

leashed/tethered on private property.  Usually you are allowed to have your dog off leash on your 

own private property, however, this dog must be leashed/tethered on his own property. 

There were no questions from the Committee. 

Chair Barrett called Mrs. Curran up to the podium.  She asked Mrs. Curran if she had any 

questions for the Officer.  She asked Officer Christensen when he came to her house, you came 

to see her and not her dog.  He explained that he looked at the history/prior incidents and that he 

had spoken to the victim and believed it was not necessary to see Ace.  Dog owner said basically 

the same thing as the victim on the day in question.  Mrs. Curran asked if her dog had ever 

attacked anyone else?  Officer Christensen said there was one prior complaint in 2015. 

Chair Barrett asked for a one minute recess.  When she came back, she explained to Mrs. Curran 

that she could have the assistance of a paralegal, but only one person could speak at a time.  The 

paralegal told the Committee that in January, 2015, Mrs. Curran’s dog was off leash and that a 

female officer who attended her property told her that her dog could be off leash on her own 

property.  Officer Christensen said that the dog owner articulated to him that his dog will always 

be off leash on Beachview Street and that he would not change the behavior even after he was 

told that this was in violation of the Dog and Cat By-law.  Mrs. Curran stated again that there 

was no attack at that time and Officer Christensen responded that there was one that was similar 

in nature.  It was a German Shepherd on Beachview Street that was barking and growling at the 

complainant. 

Mrs. Curran told the Committee that on March 6, 2016 around 2:30 p.m., Ace was catching a 

ball with her husband.  She was on the front step of her house with her daughter.  Her husband 

walked in front of the victim’s driveway and Mrs. Curran was concerned she was going to hit her 

husband as she was speeding into it.  She told the Committee that two other dogs were also out at 

that time, off leash and going to the ravine.  She said that the victim said “get your bleeping dog 

off my property” and Mrs. Curran’s husband asked her what her problem was.  Daughter was 

yelling for her dad, due to the victim swearing at her husband.  Believes that the dog never 

barked or charged.  Daughter was standing behind her husband.  The Currans have lived there 19 

years and have had no other incidents.  Says there have been previous complaints to the Town by 

this particular neighbor.   

3



Member Lambert asked Mrs. Curran to confirm that her husband was playing with the dog on 

the street and it was off leash at the time of the incident on March 6, 2016.  She replied that he 

was off leash. 

 

Chair Barrett asked Officer Christensen if he had any questions for the appellant.  He asked Mrs. 

Curran when Ace is being walked by her husband, is he on a leash.  She replied that he is.  What 

percentage of the time is he walked on a leash.  She replied all the time.  Previous to this,  

Ace would be off leash from house to the ravine.  They have put in a tether on the front lawn.  

Mrs. Curran walks Ace at 6:30 a.m. and even to the car on a leash now.  She has also told her 

kids to always walk him on a leash.  He is on a leash on their property and is being walked on a 

leash. 

 

Chair Barrett asked Mrs. Curran if she was appealing the Order in its entirety or only sections of 

it.  Suzanne Bemrose, Licenced Paralegal, told the Committee that Mrs. Curran would like the 

Order rescinded.  She explained the dogs past and present temperment has not changed.  She 

believes that the witness accounts are one extreme to another as there has been no other biting 

incidents.  The By-law Officer did not see the dog when he visited the home in March, 2016.  

Her client is now tethering the dog when he is on the front lawn, as she doesn’t want any further 

issues.  Mrs. Curran has purchased a 2016 dog licence and her daughter is 15 and son is 12.  Ace 

is a support dog for Mrs. Curran’s daughter.  They also have a fence.  The Currans would like 

Item #5 to be taken out of the Order as the dog didn’t bite anyone and no one needs to know if 

they move.  They would also like Item #6 – Beware of Dog signs, to be removed from the Order 

as it is a family neighbourhood and does not want to draw attention to their house.  Would like to 

have the Order to Restrain rescinded.  Ms. Bemrose brought up a previous Order to Restrain that 

occurred in Greenwood Park, where it was rescinded. 

 

Member Jean asked Officer Christensen if he believed Mrs. Curran’s 15 year old daughter is fit 

to walk Ace.  He replied he has no issue with it and neither does the complainant. 

 

Chair Barrett, on behalf of the Committee, declined to accept pictures or other items from the 

appellant. 

 

Officer Christensen told the Committee that Mr. Curran agreed that his dog was off leash under 

his supervision and that his verbal commands work to control the dog.  This incident occurred on 

his own private property.  Officer Christensen said that some residents of Ajax are afraid of all 

dogs and they should not be afraid to walk down the street.  This Order ensures that Ace will not 

be off leash.  He has no objection for Mrs. Curran’s 15 year old daughter to walk the dog and can 

take out the Beware of Dog signs and the relocation section from the Order.   

 

Ms. Bemrose would like to see the Order rescinded.  The Curran’s house is at the end of the road 

near the ravine and even though it is illegal, it is common for people to walk their dogs off leash. 

 

Chair Lambert asked Officer Christensen about removing the Beware of Dog signs from the 

Order.  He has no issue with removing this clause as there was no physical attack. 

 

Chair Barrett asked Mrs. Curran if she had a fence.  She replied yes she does. 

4



 

Committee Members then went into deliberations, discussing the Items of the Order to Restrain.  

They have no issue with Item #5 being rescinded. 

 

Staff Resource, D. Hannan, raised a Point of Order for the committee members to speak into the 

microphone. 

 

The Committee members have no issue with Item #3, which is having the 15 year old daughter 

walking the dog.   

 

Member Jean has no issue amending the Order, but he does not want to rescind it entirely.  He 

will consider rescinding Items 5 and 6 and amending Item 3. 

 

Chair Barrett agreed with rescinding Items, 1, 5 and 6.  Item 3 should be amended to 15 years of 

age.  Item 4 should remain. 

 

Member Lambert stated that Item 3 is for the Curran’s 15 year old daughter only.  Ace is not to 

be walked by just any 15 year old. 

 

Paralegal Bemrose asked if the Committee was dealing with Item 2 also about reducing the age 

from 18 to 15. 

 

Member Lambert asked if the Committee could be specific about the 15 year old.  She does not 

believe the Currans want any other 15 year old to walk Ace. 

 

Chair Barrett said Item 2 would also apply to the 15 year old daughter of the Currans. 

 

Member Jean raised a Motion to amend the Order.  Item 2 would change the age from 18 to 15, 

Item 3 would change the age from 18 to 15 and strike out Item 5 and 6 in their entirety.  The rest 

of the Order is to be upheld. 

 

Chair Barrett agreed to remove Item 1, amend Items 2 and 3, changing the age of the person 

from 18 years of age to at least 15 years of age.  The Currans have also obtained a 1 year licence. 

 

Member Lambert agreed with striking out Item 5 and 6, amending Items 2 and 3 and having Item 

4 remain.   She also has no issue with striking out Item 1. 

 

Member Jean made a Motion to amend Item 2, replacing the age of 18 with 15, amend Item 3 to 

replace age 18 with 15, and strike Item 5 and 6 off the Order. 

 

Chair Barrett confirmed rescinding Items 1, 5 and 6, amending Items 2 and 3 and upholding Item 

4. 

 

 

 

 

5



Original Order 
 
You shall: 
 
1. Register and licence the dog with the Town of Ajax. You shall provide proof of 

such registration and licencing to the Animal Services Division within 15 days of 
service of this Order.  Note:  Current licensing for 2016 is now in place, effective 
March 7, 2016. 

 
2. Keep the dog on a leash, no more than 1.8 meters in length, while the dog is on 

the property of the owner, or tethered so that the dog is physically restrained to a 
distance of 1 metre from the property line.  The leash or tether must be of 
sufficient strength to prevent an attack and the leashed dog shall be under the 
full control of a person of at least eighteen years of age.  In the alternative the 
dog shall be kept in a secured and fenced yard. (see Item 4) 

 
3. Keep the dog on a leash, no more than 1.8 meters in length, while the dog is on 

property other than that of its owner.  The leash must be of sufficient strength to 
prevent an attack and be under full control of a person of at least eighteen years 
of age. 

  
4. Ensure where this Order requires a secured and fenced yard, the said fence shall 

be of sufficient height and strength to adequately prevent the dog from escaping.  
In addition, where a gate forms a part of the fence, the gate shall have a self-
closing and self-latching device, both of which shall be kept in good working 
order. 

 
5. Notify the Town of Ajax, Animal Services, in the event the dog is sold or 

ownership of the dog is otherwise transferred to any other person, or the dog is 
relocated to any other address besides the address referred to in this Order, of 
the new owner’s name and address within 5 days. 

  
6. Have clearly posted “BEWARE OF DOG” signs at all entrances of the dwelling 

unit which the public can access.  These signs must be a minimum of 12 inches 
wide and a minimum of 8 inches tall.  Any variation of the sign must be approved 
by Ajax Animal Services. (Signs may be purchased at 65 Harwood Avenue 
South, Ajax at cost, $2.00 tax incl.) 

 
 
Amended Order 

 
1. Keep the dog on a leash, no more than 1.8 meters in length, while the dog is on the 

property of the owner, or tethered so that the dog is physically restrained to a distance of 
1 metre from the property line.  The leash or tether must be of sufficient strength to 
prevent an attack and the leashed dog shall be under the full control of a person of at 
least fifteen years of age.  In the alternative the dog shall be kept in a secured and 
fenced yard. (see Item 3). 
 

 
 

6



2. Keep the dog on a leash, no more than 1.8 meters in length, while the dog is on property  
other than that of its owner.  The leash must be of sufficient strength to prevent an attack 
and be under full control of a person of at least fifteen years of age. 

  
3. Ensure were this Order requires a secured and fenced yard, the said fence shall be of  

sufficient height and strength to adequately prevent the dog from escaping.  In addition, 
where a gate forms a part of the fence, the gate shall have a self-closing and self-
latching device, both of which shall be kept in good working order. 
 
All in favour. 
 
          Carried. 

 

Chair Barrett explained the amended Order to the appellant, Mrs. Curran, and told her she would 

also get it in writing.  

 

This portion of the meeting ended at 7:45 p.m. 

 

The Committee then took a 5 minute recess. 

 

The Committee resumed at 7:48 p.m. 

 

4.2 Property Standards Appeal Committee 

 

 4.2.1 Rashid Appeal – 61 Wilce Drive 

 

Chair Barrett asked if Officer Neal and the owner of 61 Wilce Drive were present.  They both 

responded they were. 

 

Officer Neal gave an overview of the property and the issues there.   A complaint was received 

from the basement tenant at 61 Wilce Drive regarding deficiencies in the apartment.  On 

February 16, 2016, Officer Neal and Officer Vokey inspected the basement apartment and found 

various deficiencies.  Officer Neal issued a Property Standards Order on February 19, 2016 

which ordered the repair, removal and installation of several items in the basement apartment, on 

or before April 4, 2016. 

 

Chair Barrett asked Officer Neal what was on the back side of the kitchen cupboard  He replied 

that the hole in the drywall was covered with cardboard and tape and it is against a wall.  She 

asked Officer Neal what is showing in the picture on page 69 of the agenda. He replied that they 

are holes in the carpet that is showing wear and tear.  There is approximately 3 feet of length of 

torn carpet in the living room.  Chair Barrett also asked Officer Neal if that was a tear in the 

carpet on page 70.  He replied that yes, it was.  She asked what is showing in the picture on page 

71 of the agenda and he replied that it was a picture of the bedroom window that may have been 

leaking and water getting into the house.  Officer Neal stated that he saw no signs of water 

damage.  The drywall was also removed during his inspection.  Chair Barrett asked if there were 

any gaps in the wood frame and Officer Neal replied again that he saw no signs of water damage. 

 

7



Member Lambert asked Officer Neal in the pictures on pages 69 and 70 of the agenda is the tear 

in the carpet enough that you can see underneath.  He replied that on page 69 the carpet is close 

to the ground and on page 70, that is the ground.  Member Lambert asked him if the tear goes 

through to the concrete floor and he replied that it did. 

 

Member Jean asked if there was any way they can repair the carpet or does it need to be 

replaced?  Officer Neal replied that the carpet is old and has seen better days.  It is also a 

potential tripping hazard. 

 

Chair Barrett asked on page 66 of the agenda if that was a gap in the woodwork.  Officer Neal 

replied it was not.  The window is in a good state of repair.  Chair Barrett asked him if this was a 

picture of a bedroom and he replied that it was the s/e side of the dwelling.  There are 2 

bedrooms in this apartment. 

 

Member Lambert asked Officer Neal about the temperature in the basement being less than 20 

degrees Celsius.  Officer Neal replied that he took 2 readings – one in the living room and the 

second reading was taken in the s/e bedroom and they were both registering under 20 degrees 

Celsius.  She asked if there was a vent and Officer Neal replied that the tenant doesn’t have 

access to the thermostat.  During his inspection, he waited for the furnace to come on.  There was 

no heat in the bedroom and only a small amount of heat in the kitchen. 

 

Chair Barrett asked on page 68 of the agenda if the picture of the stairs was from outside.  

Officer Neal said no, these stairs lead up to the laundry room. 

 

Chair Barrett asked the Rashid’s if they had any questions for Officer Neal.  The daughter 

responded on behalf of her parents that as she doesn’t know the state of the carpet, she had no 

specific questions. 

 

Staff Resource, D. Hannan, raised a Point of Order, and asked the woman to please identify 

herself.  She replied that she was Humaira Rashid, speaking for her mother.  She is the daughter 

of the homeowners.   

 

Ms. Humaira Rashid explained to the Committee that a lot of the issues outlined in the Order 

they were already working on with the tenant.  Her parents were recently out of the country, so 

they couldn’t fix the items quickly.  The drywall was left open upon request of the tenant to see 

if there was any leak.  She explained that they are repairing the window, but need time, as her 

parents have just come back.  Regarding the heating issue when the parents weren’t home, it was 

adjusted to the tenant’s liking.  She said she was not aware of any towel that was stuffed into the 

vent, and also told the Committee that the tenant has never complained about the cold.  The 

tenant has two cats and the carpet may be torn from them.  She is not comfortable replacing the 

carpet, as it may be in the same shape in 2-3 weeks.  She agreed that they will work with Officer 

Neal to fix the issues. 

 

Officer Neal had no questions for Ms. Humaira Rashid. 

 

 

8



Member Lambert asked if anyone lives upstairs at 61 Wilce Drive.  Ms. Humaira Rashid 

responded that her cousin and brother lived in the house when her parents were away. 

 

Chair Barrett asked if the tenant approached her cousin or her brother during the time that her 

parents were away and replied that she did not.  Ms. Rashid explained that she would like more 

time to comply.  Chair Barrett asked Ms. Humaira Rashid when the tenant moved in.  She replied 

that it was two years ago and the repairs started about two months ago when they ripped the 

window out.   They have since done some repairs to the window and they started the work in 

December, 2015.  They want the tenant to be happy.  Chair Barrett asked who is doing the work.  

Ms. Humaira Rashid replied it is a contractor, but did not know his name. Chair Barrett asked if 

he came back between December and February and she didn’t know as she didn’t document any 

dates.  Chair Barrett asked how long do they need to comply.  Ms. Humaira Rashid replied that 

the apartment has been drywalled, the window fixed and they removed the blockage from the 

heating vent. 

 

Member Lambert asked Ms. Humaira Rashid how long did she need to fix the items and she 

replied one to one and a half months.  45 days would be good. 

 

Member Lambert asked Officer Neal if he saw the tenant’s cat at the time of the inspection.  She 

wondered if the state of the carpet could be from the cat.  He replied that on the day of 

inspection, with the tear length and size, he believed it was just old carpet, with lots of wear and 

tear.  He explained that the cat may have scratched some areas of the carpet, but the carpet was 

definitely ripped. She asked Officer Neal if the carpet could be repaired or does it need to be 

replaced?  He replied that the carpet should be replaced. 

 

Member Lambert asked about the handrail that was missing in the picture on page 68 of the 

agenda.  Officer Neal replied that the handrail needs to be installed on these stairs. 

 

Chair Barrett asked Officer Neal to summarize. He explained that during his inspection on 

February 16, 2016, he noted that the entire carpet had to be replaced, installation of new flooring 

is needed, drywall in kitchen needs repair, ensure heat at 20 degrees Celsius, have handrail 

installed, there are to be no water leaks in the bedroom window and complete the repair to the 

window.  He would like to see all the items upheld in the Order. 

 

Chair Barrett then asked Ms. Humaira Rashid to summarize.  She believes that the tear in the 

carpet is not a safety issue.  The tenant is not easy to work with to gain access to the basement. 

 

Chair Barrett asked Ms. Humaira Rashid what needs clarification in the Order. She replied that it 

is regarding the flooring.  The Order says it needs to be repaired/replaced – smooth with no 

tripping hazard.  They must remove all sections of the carpet.  Ms. Humaira Rashid does not 

believe it is a safety hazard.  Chair Barrett asked her if she needed any other clarification.  She 

replied that she did not. 

 

The Committee then went into deliberations.  Member Lambert said the homeowners are asking 

for 30-45 days to comply.  She has no problem with that and can give her an extension. She does 

have a concern with the homeowners not replacing the carpet in the basement.  Believes it can 

9



cause a hazard with the uneven floor and can cause tripping. Carpet in a basement provides 

insulation, whereas concrete keeps in the cold. 

 

Member Jean agreed with Member Lambert about replacing the carpet.  Concerned about 

tripping – ok with an extension, but closer to 30 days. 

 

Chair Barrett agrees with the timeline and that the homeowners can use other materials for the 

basement floor. She is, however, concerned about the window.  The homeowner is waiting for it 

to rain before the window is patched up.  Believes the towel may have been stuffed into the vent 

to redirect heat into other areas. 

 

Member Lambert asked Officer Neal if the tenant needs a separate thermostat as she has to ask 

the upstairs residents to change the heat.  Officer Neal responded that there is nothing in the By-

law that they have to have their own thermostat. 

 

Member Lambert made a Motion that the Order be upheld and that the work must be completed 

within 30 days of tonight’s meeting, which is May 14, 2016. 

 

SCHEDULE “A” 

 

ITEM   PARTICULARS OF REPAIRS TO BE EFFECTED 

 

  This is with regard to the basement apartment at 61 Wilce Dr. 

 

1. Fully remove all sections of carpet in the basement of the dwelling. 

 

2. Install a material of flooring in the basement which is reasonably smooth and level 

and will afford a safe passage, free of any tripping hazards. 

 

Please note: At the time of my inspection there were several sections of carpet which 

were damaged, ripped, and torn. 

 

3. Repair the hole in the drywall specifically located on the inside of the kitchen 

cupboard, and ensure that the drywall is matched with the similar material, and is in a 

good state of repair. 

 

Please note: At the time of my inspection this hole was covered with a piece of 

cardboard and duct tape. The hole is located inside of the kitchen cupboard on the 

bottom level.  

 

4. Ensure that the heat in every room in the dwelling meets the minimum requirement of 

20 degrees Celsius, as outlined in the Town’s Heating By-law, # 71 – 2005. 

 

10



Please note: During my inspection temperature readings were taken in the living 

room, and in the bedroom located on the south west side of the dwelling. The 

temperature in both rooms was less than 20 degrees Celsius. 

 

5. Ensure that the living room window that is situated right above the kitchen table is 

properly fitted to the window frame to prevent the entrance of the elements, and is 

leak free and is in a good state of repair. 

 

6. Install a handrail on the wall which leads from the basement to the laundry room, in 

order to afford a safe passage. The hand rail and all associated components must be 

sound, safe, secure and structurally sound and maintained in a good state of repair. 

The construction of the hand rail must be installed and maintained in accordance with 

the Ontario Building Code. 

 

Please note: The specifications for the handrail are to comply with the Ontario 

Building Code. Refer to the Code for specific requirements.  

  

Items 7 and 8 are in regards to the bedroom located on the south east side of the 

dwelling. 

 

7. Ensure that the bedroom window and the foundation wall are free of all water leaks, 

and ensure that the window and the foundation wall are in a good state of repair. 

 

8.  Complete the repair to the window, ceiling, and the wall surrounding the window, so 

that they are in a good state of repair. Ensure that the wall is finished in a manner that 

matches the existing wall. 

 

The work must be completed by May 14, 2016. 

 

All in favour.   

          Carried.  

             

This portion of the meeting ended at 8:26 p.m. 

 

 

Verbal Update  

 

5.1.1 Richards Appeal – 4 Leach Drive 

 

Staff Resource, D. Hannan, told the Committee that the dog owner has not appealed to the 

General Government Committee and has complied with the Order to Restrain. 

 

 

11



5.2.1 2330829 Ontario Inc. Appeal – 252 Hunt Street 

Staff Resource, D. Hannan, told the Committee that the matter is still before the courts and there 

are now additional charges. 

Adjourned by Member Lambert at 8:28 p.m. 

Carried. 

_____________________________  

Chair  

12



13



14



15



16



17





19



20



21



22



 

 

Appellant’s 

Submission   

23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72


	Minutes Apr.14.16
	Appeal Package 49 Iles St
	Appellant
	Appellant's Submission
	appeal pkg garnett
	Blank Page



